
 
 

 
 
 
15 January 2020 
 
 
To: Councillors Burdess, Callow, Collett, Cox, Critchley, Galley, Hugo, Mitchell and Roberts  

 
Ms Yvonne Russell, Independent Member 
 

The above Members are requested to attend the:  
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, 23 January 2020 at 6.00pm 
in Committee Room A, Town Hall, Blackpool 

 

A G E N D A 
 
1  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 
 Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in 

doing so state:  
 
(1) the type of interest concerned either a 
 

(a) personal interest 
(b) prejudicial interest  
(c) disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI) 

 
and 
 
(2) the nature of the interest concerned 
 
If any Member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact 
the Head of Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting. 

 
2  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 27 NOVEMBER 2019  (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 To agree the minutes of the last meeting of the Audit Committee held on 27 November 

2019 as a true and correct record. 
 

3  COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AUDIT FOLLOW-UP  (Pages 5 - 20) 
 

 To consider a progress report on the recommendations made in the internal audit 
report of Community Engagement issued on 18 December 2018. 

Public Document Pack



 
4  STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER - FAILURE TO KEEP PEOPLE SAFE  (Pages 21 - 30) 

 
 To consider a progress report on individual risks identified in the Council’s Strategic Risk 

Register. 
 

5  ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2018/2019 HALF-YEAR REVIEW  (Pages 31 - 46) 
 

 To provide the Audit Committee with an update on progress made on the actions 
identified in the Annual Governance Statement 2018-2019. 

 
6  ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2018/2019  (Pages 47 - 62) 

 
 To consider the Annual Audit Letter on the 2018/2019 External Audit. 

 
7  DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

 
 To note the date and time of the next meeting of the Committee as 12 March 2020, 

commencing at 6pm. 
 

 

Venue information: 
 
First floor meeting room (lift available), accessible toilets (ground floor), no-smoking building. 
 

Other information: 
 

For queries regarding this agenda please contact Elaine Ireland, Democratic Governance Senior 
Adviser, Tel: 01253 477255, e-mail elaine.ireland@blackpool.gov.uk 
 

Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the 
Council’s website at www.blackpool.gov.uk. 

 

http://www.blackpool.gov.uk/


MINUTES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 27 NOVEMBER 2019 
 
 

 
Present:  
 
Councillor Galley (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors 
 
Burdess 
Callow 

Cox 
Critchley 

Farrell 
Roberts 

 

 
In Attendance:  
 
Mrs Tracy Greenhalgh, Head of Audit and Risk 
Mr Neil Jack, Chief Executive 
Mr Phil Redmond, Chief Accountant 
Mr Steve Thompson, Director of Resources 
Ms Karen Tomlinson, Senior Accountant 
Mr Mark Towers, Director of Governance and Partnerships 
Mrs Elaine Ireland, Democratic Governance Senior Adviser 
 
Mr Nick Raynor, Senior Manager, Deloitte 
Mr Paul Thomson, Risk Advisory Partner, Deloitte 
 
Also Present: 
Councillor Mrs Callow, Chair of the Scrutiny Leadership Board 
 
1  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Galley declared a personal interest in relation to agenda item 4 Management 
Representation Letter due to his position as a Non-Executive Director on the Board of the 
Blackpool Entertainment Company Limited. 
 
2  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 12 SEPTEMBER 2019 
 
The Committee agreed that the minutes of the meeting held on 12 September 2019 be 
signed by the Chairman as a true and correct record. 
 
3  STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2018/2019 
 
The Chairman summarised the decision taken by the Committee at its meeting on 25 July 
2019 to approve the Statement of Accounts for 2018/2019 subject to no material changes 
resulting from the outstanding work still to be completed at that time. Further to that 
decision, at its meeting on 12 September 2019, Mr Paul Thomson, Risk Advisory Partner at 
Deloitte had informed the Committee that the potential financial impact of the McCloud 
ruling had been resolved, however a further query with regards to the Council’s accounting 
reserves had prevented the external auditors from agreeing the final Statement of 
Accounts.  

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



MINUTES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 27 NOVEMBER 2019 
 
 

 
The Chairman updated the Committee that no material changes had been identified as a 
result of the additional queries and as such the Committee was being asked to review and 
approve the audited Statement of Accounts for 2018/2019.  
 
Mr Steve Thompson, Director of Resources reminded Committee Members that Deloitte 
had been newly appointed as the Council’s external auditors. As such, discussions had taken 
place regarding the treatment of transactions which had been dealt with in a particular way 
on a long-standing basis due to the advice provided by the Council’s former external 
auditors, but which Deloitte now advised should be treated differently.   
 
Mr Paul Thomson stated that the financial statements had now been agreed, with a number 
of the required adjustments relating back to the 2017/2018 period. The Committee was 
informed that Mr Thomson did not anticipate that the same high level of alterations would 
be necessary in future years as adjustments had since been applied following advice from 
Deloitte. In addition Deloitte had suggested to Mr Thompson that an annual April workshop 
with the Council’s financial team would be beneficial to allow for a clear understanding of 
interpretations for future financial statements.  
 
The Committee questioned whether, due to the length of time taken to complete the audit 
this year, the proposed workshops would be more beneficial if they occurred earlier in the 
year. Mr Thomson reiterated that as the issues had largely related to the previous year’s 
figures and that necessary changes had been implemented to address these, he felt that a 
workshop at the end of April to review all key actions would be timely.  Mr Thompson 
highlighted that, in his opinion, the Council’s finance team had not been responsible for any 
errors in the accounting process, rather that they had been interpreting the data in line with 
advice provided by the previous external auditors. 
 
Committee Members queried whether there would be a resulting financial impact due to 
the additional time spent reviewing the accounts by Deloitte. Mr Thompson advised that he 
would review the invoice from the external auditors and seek advice as appropriate. Further 
questions were asked by the Committee around the fact that no material changes had been 
identified as a result of the process. Mr Thomson stated that any sort of overrun was not 
desirable but that his team had to be satisfied that the accounts had been materially correct 
before approving them. The Committee asked Mr Thomson if Deloitte had a figure in mind. 
He said they had an estimated figure but that had not yet been finalised. The Committee 
assured Deloitte that the itemised bill in respect of the final amount would be closely 
scrutinised. Committee Members also made the point clear that the expectation would be 
that every effort should be made to ensure that next year’s accounts be completed within 
the agreed timeframe. 
 
With regards to the Value for Money (VfM) qualified opinion, the Committee questioned 
what evidence had been used to form the qualification. Mr Thomson stated that although 
other evidence had been considered, the qualification was as a sole result of the 
‘Inadequate’ Ofsted rating of Children’s Services. Mr Thompson responded that although 
the narrative to the accounts contained nothing unexpected, he felt that the VfM 
judgement of Children’s Services was unfair as Ofsted inspectors had not sought information 

Page 2



MINUTES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 27 NOVEMBER 2019 
 
 

from the finance team during the course of their review. Mr Thomson on behalf of Deloitte 
commented that was standard wording used in such circumstances.  
 
The Committee agreed: To approve the audited Statement of Accounts for 2018/2019. 
  
 
4  MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATION LETTER 
 
The Committee considered the contents of the Management Representation Letter for 
2018/2019.  
 
Members questioned the external audit qualification of Blackpool Entertainment Company 
Limited (BECL) as a consequence of the company not making an appropriate provision 
against a significant unpaid debtor balance and requested clarification on the potential 
consequences if this was not paid. Mr Thompson assured the Committee that the issue was 
for the BECL Board to pursue with its external auditors and as the company maintained its 
own separate accounts it was not for the Council to resolve.  
 
The Committee agreed:  

1) To note the contents of the Management Representation Letter for 2018/2019. 
2) That the letter be signed by the Chairman of the Audit Committee and Director of 

Resources. 
3) That the signed letter then be provided to Deloitte. 

 
5  RISK SERVICES QUARTER TWO REPORT 
 
The Committee considered the Risk Services Quarter Two report which provided a summary 
of the work completed by Risk Services in quarter two of the 2019/2020 financial year. 
 
Mrs Tracy Greenhalgh, Head of Audit and Risk informed the Committee that the majority of 
completed audits had scored either ‘Good’ or ‘Adequate’. A question was raised regarding 
the Corporate Fraud Statistics report with respect to the categories identified for 
monitoring. Mrs Greenhalgh explained that a benchmarking exercise had been used to 
identify the categories monitored by other Local Authorities and the numbers of each type 
of fraud identified. In addition, Mrs Greenhalgh made reference to an annual benchmarking 
exercise undertaken by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
which she offered to bring to the Committee’s next meeting for consideration in conjunction 
with the Risk Services Quarter Three report. The Committee requested a target date for the 
completion of the Volunteering Audit report, which Mrs Greenhalgh confirmed would be 
provided to Committee Members.  
 
In relation to the Communication and Regeneration audit of Advertising, the Committee 
queried whether time had been scheduled for the follow-up of the 16 Priority Two 
recommendations. Mrs Greenhalgh suggested that this be added to the Committee’s Work 
Plan to ensure adequate assurance could be provided to the Committee of the completion 
of the recommendations.  
 

Page 3



MINUTES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING - WEDNESDAY, 27 NOVEMBER 2019 
 
 

Committee Members asked whether sufficient progress had been made in addressing the 
recommendations resulting from the Covert Surveillance audit. Mrs Greenhalgh stated that 
staff training was ongoing and awareness was continually improving. 
 
The Committee agreed: To note the report. 
 
6  COVERT SURVEILLANCE POLICY 
 
Mr Mark Towers, Director of Governance and Partnerships presented the Committee with 
the revised Covert Surveillance Policy. He explained that the policy had been updated to 
reflect current good practice and to recognise that some covert surveillance activity 
undertaken by the Council fell outside the Regulatory of Investigatory Powers Act (2000). Mr 
Towers assured Committee Members that the updated document provided a complete and 
accurate policy. 
 
Members asked whether an inspection of the Council’s covert surveillance operations could 
be expected. Mr Towers confirmed that an inspection by the Investigatory Powers 
Commissioner was anticipated in the near future as inspections usually occurred 
approximately every three years.  
 
The Committee commended the policy and questioned if staff training had been provided to 
support operational implementation across departments. Mr Towers confirmed that the 
Corporate RIPA Group had been overseeing implementation of the policy and an external 
trainer had been consulted in the creation of the policy. Targeted training had been and 
would continue to be provided as required. 
 
 
The Board agreed: To approve the revised Covert Surveillance Policy. 
 
7  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The date and time of the next meeting of the Committee was noted as 23 January 2020, 
commencing at 6pm. 
 
  
  
  
  
Cllr Paul Galley, Chairman 
  
(The meeting ended at 6.50 pm) 
  
Any queries regarding these minutes, please contact: 
Elaine Ireland, Democratic Governance Senior Adviser 
Tel: 01253 477255 
E-mail: elaine.ireland@blackpool.gov.uk 

Page 4



Report to: AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officers: Chloe Shore, Community Engagement and Partnerships Manager 

Date of Meeting  23 January 2020 

 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AUDIT FOLLOW-UP  
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To consider a progress report on the recommendations made in the internal audit 
report of Community Engagement issued on 18 December 2018.   
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 To consider the actions being implemented to address the audit recommendations 
relating to Community Engagement.       

 
3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

To enable Audit Committee to consider an update and progress report on the audit 
recommendations. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

 N/a 
 

4.0 Council Priority: 
 

4.1 The relevant Council priority is organisational resilience.   
 
5.0 

 
Background Information 
 

5.1 
 
 
 

At its meeting in June 2019, the Audit Committee agreed to invite Heads of Service 
to the meeting to provide an update in relation to internal audit recommendation 
implementation.  
 
The report being considered at this meeting relates to Community Engagement with 
the scope and assurance statement as follows: 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Scope 

The scope of the audit was to review and assess the current arrangements for 
engagement with the community across the Council’s various service areas in order 
to assist the Community Engagement team in embedding a strategic, effective and 
consistent approach to engagement going forward.  

Overall Opinion and Assurance Statement 

The Council’s community engagement activity is not governed by any specific 
controls, nor does it work within the parameters of any corporate guidance, although 
those that undertake statutory consultations will maintain some local guidance.  

It is clear that the Council does engage, however whether that engagement is 
effective and of the right quality has not been proven, internal audit therefore 
consider there to be inadequate controls with a number of material risks identified 
and significant improvement required.  
 
An update on actions is outlined at Appendix 3(a). 
 

 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No 

 List of Appendices: 
 

 

 Appendix 3(a):  Internal Audit Recommendations and Agreed Actions.   
 

 

6.0 Legal considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

Risks need to be effectively managed in order to comply with relevant legislation.     
 

7.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

7.1 
 

The controls being implemented will be undertaken by current employees.   
 

8.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

N/a 

9.0 Financial considerations: 
 

9.1 The controls being implemented will be done so within current budget constraints. 
  
10.0 Risk management considerations: 

 
10.1 To enable the Audit Committee to gain assurance that risks are being effectively 

managed.   
 

11.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 Page 6



11.1 The progress report has been prepared in conjunction with the relevant Heads of 
Service and Chief Officers. 
 

12.0 Background papers: 
 

12.1 
 

None. 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



      APPENDIX 3(a) 

Recommendation Priority Agreed Action Responsible 
officer 

Target Date Progress 

R1  We recommend that the Council produces 
a Community Engagement Strategy, which 
should build on existing engagement 
mechanisms.  

1 Agreed. Community 
Engagement 
& 
Partnership 
Manager 

31st March 
2019 

Partially Complete – 
Revised date 31st 
March 2020 

Policy has been drafted 
to cover community 
engagement principles 
and initial internal 
feedback gathered. 
Currently out for 
secondary feedback. 

An information 
gathering event has 
been undertaken at SLT 
to understand scope. 

Strategy has been 
drafted and is out for 
initial feedback. 

P
age 9



      APPENDIX 3(a) 

Recommendation Priority Agreed Action Responsible 
officer 

Target Date Progress 

R2  We recommend that the Community 
Engagement Strategy should be supported 
by an engagement/consultation plan.  

2 Agreed. Community 
Engagement 
& 
Partnership 
Manager 

31st March 
2019 

Partially Complete – 
revised date 31st March 
2020 

Community 
Engagement is in the 
Public Health’s remit.  

An engagement plan 
will be provided 
through the delivery 
toolkit. 

Initial conversations 
have taken place with 
the Transformation 
Manager regarding 
how to address 
consultation processes 
across the Council. 

Day to day engagement 
will fall under ‘business 
as usual’, larger scale 
engagement projects 
will fall in scope here. 

P
age 10



      APPENDIX 3(a) 

Recommendation Priority Agreed Action Responsible 
officer 

Target Date Progress 

R3  We recommend that the community 
engagement team establishes a working 
link with partner organisation engagement 
functions, to allow for better local 
engagement coordination, avoidance of 
duplication and where possible sharing of 
intelligence and data.  

3 Agreed. Director of 
Public Health 
and 
Consultant in 
Public Health 

31st March 
2019 

Complete 

Community 
Engagement Steering 
group pulls together 
departments to 
support and have 
overview of larger 
engagement projects. 

Comm Engagement 
Manager attends 
external meetings with 
key partner 
organisations to 
prevent duplication 
and share intelligence 
(i.e. NHS, VCFS) 

CE team will be 
including partner 
agencies in shaping 
strategy both internal 
departments & 
external. 

 

P
age 11



      APPENDIX 3(a) 

Recommendation Priority Agreed Action Responsible 
officer 

Target Date Progress 

R4  We recommend that the best practice 
guides being developed by the engagement 
team, outlines the process which defines 
the parameters regarding when it is 
appropriate to consult or not.  

2 Agreed. Community 
Engagement 
& 
Partnership 
Manager 

31st March 
2019 

Complete –It has been 
agreed with the 
Corporate Delivery 
Team as Infusion lead 
Council Consultation, 
that guidance on when 
to consult will be 
added as an appendix 
within the documents 
but departments will 
be signposted to 
Infusion for a final 
decision regarding 
whether consultation is 
needed. It will be 
reviewed on a case by 
case basis. Where there 
is no legal duty to 
Consult it will be 
expected that 
departments undertake 
engagement.  

P
age 12



      APPENDIX 3(a) 

Recommendation Priority Agreed Action Responsible 
officer 

Target Date Progress 

R5  We recommend that the best practice 
guides that the engagement team are 
developing should contain high level 
guidance to support the early decision 
making on engagements and consultations 
to ensure the right methods and 
approaches are utilised to gain maximum 
returns.  

3 Agreed. Community 
Engagement 
& 
Partnership 
Manager 

31st March 
2019 

Partially Complete – 
Revised date 31 Mar 
2020 

Best practice 
guide/toolkit draft in 
place which includes 
contacts engagement 
methods, how to and 
information on impact. 
In order to ensure a 
Blackpool wide process 
this is being developed 
in partnership with 
NHS and shaped by the 
CE steering board. 

R6  We recommend that resources utilised on 
consultations and engagements is 
commensurate with outputs being sought.  

2 Agreed. Community 
Engagement 
& 
Partnership 
Manager 

31st March 
2019 

Complete – guidance is 
included in policy. 

P
age 13



      APPENDIX 3(a) 

Recommendation Priority Agreed Action Responsible 
officer 

Target Date Progress 

R7  We recommend that the Council brings 
together a record of all 
engagement/consultation activity in order 
to ensure that it maintains a strategic 
overview and coordinated approach.  

3 Agreed. Community 
Engagement 
& 
Partnership 
Manager 

31st March 
2019 

Partially complete – 
revised date 31 march 
2020. 

Consultation activity is 
already tracked and 
recorded by Infusion. 
One off engagement 
projects will be 
reviewed and tracked 
by the Community 
Engagement Steering 
group. 

Everyday engagement 
is out of scope but 
larger one off activity 
will be tracked.  

An annual Community 
Engagement CLT report 
will be submitted to 
ensure wide oversight 
of activity. 

P
age 14



      APPENDIX 3(a) 

Recommendation Priority Agreed Action Responsible 
officer 

Target Date Progress 

R8  We recommend that all significant 
engagements/consultations seek legal 
advice at an early stage to ensure that a 
legally robust engagement is undertaken.  

2 Agreed. Community 
Engagement 
& 
Partnership 
Manager 

31st March 
2019 

Complete – Head of 
Legal services sits on 
the steering group to 
advise as needed. 
Seeking guidance early 
will also fit as part of 
best practice within the 
toolkit. 

R9  We recommend that the Council explores 
more beneficial cost options with Infusion.  

3 This will form part of 
the best practice 
strategy 
guides/strategy. 

Community 
Engagement 
& 
Partnership 
Manager 

31st March 
2019 

Complete - Infusion has 
been reviewed by the 
Corporate Delivery 
Team. They no longer 
charge for activity 

funded by Blackpool 
Council service budgets 
if it clearly aligns with 
corporate priorities. 

P
age 15



      APPENDIX 3(a) 

Recommendation Priority Agreed Action Responsible 
officer 

Target Date Progress 

R10  We recommend that the Council aims to 
identify its engagement expenditure at a 
project and Council wide level.  

2 Agreed. Community 
Engagement 
& 
Partnership 
Manager 

31st March 
2019 

Partially Complete – 
Revised date 31st 
March 2020 

Day to day engagement 
is out of scope however 
larger one off projects 
will be encouraged 
through the toolkit to 
track their costs 
through evaluation as 
part of best practice.  

In addition the 
Transformation 
Manager is leading a 
piece of work to 
understand who 
outside of the 
engagement team is 
undertaking work, time 
commitment and 
council wide cost. 

P
age 16



      APPENDIX 3(a) 

Recommendation Priority Agreed Action Responsible 
officer 

Target Date Progress 

R11  We recommend that the community 
engagement team works with the 
Communications team to see how best 
social media intelligence can be captured 
and utilised by the Council.  

3 Agreed and will try 
and link this with the 
data they are 
capturing from NHS. 

Community 
Engagement 
& 
Partnership 
Manager 

31st March 
2019 

The Communications 
Team are invited to the 
internal steering group 
and therefore have an 
awareness of 
community 
engagement activity 
and can provide advice 
on appropriate 
communication 
channels.   

R12  We recommend establishing an internal 
community engagement group, which 
would bring the cohort of staff together 
from across the Council, which for example 
would allow for, sharing of best practice.  

3 Agreed. Community 
Engagement 
& 
Partnership 
Manager 

31st March 
2019 

Completed – The group 
meets 3 or 4 times a 
year. 

P
age 17



      APPENDIX 3(a) 

Recommendation Priority Agreed Action Responsible 
officer 

Target Date Progress 

R13  We recommend that the community 
engagement team develop a database of 
interest groups and organisations that it 
works with, and makes it available for all 
Departments when considering any type of 
engagement or consultation.  

3 Agreed. Community 
Engagement 
& 
Development 
Officer 

31st March 
2019 

Complete - Each 
directorate has a 
contact list of 
networks/groups 
relevant to them. 

Key distribution 
contact points will be 
included in the tool kit. 
i.e. Friends of Groups = 
Parks team 

R14  We recommend that a systematic process 
is put in place to ensure that where we 
have sought views from the public we 
publish the feedback and its impact on the 
policy or decision.  

2 Agreed. Community 
Engagement 
& 
Partnership 
Manager 

31st March 
2019 

Complete - There is 
already a space on the 
website for 
feedback/results. This 
will be reviewed and 
updated with the CE 
policy and strategy is 
embedded. 

Feedback loop to be 
promoted through 
toolkit to reinforce. 

P
age 18



      APPENDIX 3(a) 

Recommendation Priority Agreed Action Responsible 
officer 

Target Date Progress 

R15  We recommend that the best practice 
guides include a ‘toolkit’ of options that 
can be used, and where each option is 
likely to best suited.  

3 Agreed. Community 
Engagement 
& 
Partnership 
Manager 

31st March 
2019 

Partially complete – 
revised date 31st March 
2020  

Engagement methods 
are highly influenced 
by projects. Options 
will be shared and 
recommendations 
suggested but 
responsibility for 
choosing the 
engagement activity 
that suits them sits 
within each 
department. Advice 
can be sort through the 
Steering Group. 

R16  We recommend that the decision to place 
the community engagement function in 
Public Health is reviewed to provide the 
function with the best positioning and 
platform to affect community engagement 
across the Council.  

2 Agreed. Director of 
Public Health 

30th 
September 
2019 

Partially Complete – 
revised date 31st March 
2020 

This item was referred 
to CLT and a review is 
being led by the 
Transformation 
Manager. 

P
age 19



      APPENDIX 3(a) 

Recommendation Priority Agreed Action Responsible 
officer 

Target Date Progress 

R17  We recommend that the Council review 
their processes to keep Members well 
informed.  

2 Agreed. Community 
Engagement 
& 
Partnership 
Manager 

30th 
November 
2019 

Complete - Notifying 
Cllrs has been 
referenced as good 
practice within the CE 
strategy.  

It has also been agreed 
that any items that 
come to the Steering 
group can be emailed 
out via support staff to 
all councillors. 

Portfolio holder for 
Communities is invited 
to attend steering 
group meeting and 
receives minutes. 

 

P
age 20



Report to: AUDIT COMMITTEE  

Relevant Officers: Steve Thompson, Director of Resources   
Karen Smith, Director of Adult Services 
Diane Booth, Director of Children’s Services  
John Blackledge, Director of Community and Environmental Services 
Alan Cavill, Director of Communication and Regeneration 
Arif Rajpura, Director of Public Health  
 

Date of Meeting 23 January 2020 

 
STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER – FAILURE TO KEEP PEOPLE SAFE          
 
1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 

 
1.1 To consider a progress report on individual risks identified in the Council’s Strategic 

Risk Register.   
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 

 
2.1 To consider the controls being implemented to manage the strategic risk relating to a 

failure to keep people safe.  
 

3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

To enable the Corporate Leadership Team and the Audit Committee to consider an 
update and progress report in relation to an individual risk identified on the Strategic 
Risk Register. 

 
3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 

approved by the Council? 

 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 

 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 

 
 None 

 
4.0 Council Priority: 

 
4.1 The relevant Council priority is organisational resilience.   

  

Page 21

Agenda Item 4



5.0 Background Information 
 

5.1 
 
 
 

At its meeting in June 2019, the Audit Committee agreed to continue to invite 
Strategic Risk Owners to attend future meetings to provide updates and progress 
reports in relation to the individual risks identified on the Strategic Risk Register. 
 

 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No 

 List of Appendices: 
 

 

 Appendix 4(a): Strategic Risk Register Progress Report – Failure to Keep 
People Safe.  
 

 

6.0 Legal considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

Risks need to be effectively managed in order to comply with relevant legislation.     
 

7.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

7.1 
 

The controls being implemented will be undertaken by current employees.   
 

8.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

None 

9.0 Financial considerations: 
 

9.1 The controls being implemented will be done so within current budget constraints. 
  
10.0 Risk management considerations: 

 
10.1 To enable the Corporate Leadership Team and the Audit Committee to gain 

assurance that strategic risks are being effectively managed.   
 

11.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

11.1 The progress report has been prepared in conjunction with risk managers and/or risk 
owners.   
 

12.0 Background papers: 
 

12.1 None. 
 

Page 22



                                                               Strategic Risk Register Progress Report                                                       APPENDIX 4(a) 

 
Strategic Risk: Failure To Keep People Safe 

 
 

Sub 

No.

I L GS I L NS

Trauma for family,  

colleagues and victim.

Creation of a safe 

working environment.

Full suite of health and safety 

arrangements and guidance notes 

available on the Hub.

Review the health and safety audit 

programme to increase visibility of the 

process and buy-in to the 

recommendations.

Head of Audit and 

Risk

Director of 

Resources

March 2020

Corporate 

manslaughter changes, 

prosecution with 

unlimited fines and 

potential prison 

sentences for those in 

control.

Production of an Annual Health and 

Safety Report with recommendations 

outlining actions which CLT need to 

undertake to further embed health 

and safety.

Consider the potential of introducing 

an integrated health and safety IT 

system to enable the efficient 

reporting of accidents, recording of risk 

assessments and improving the 

functionality of the corporate warning 

register.

Head of Audit and 

Risk

Director of 

Resources

March 2021

Civil compensation 

claims.

Programme of health and safety 

management system audits in place.

A structure of health and safety 

committee meetings are in place.

Suite of health and safety training 

available for all employees.

Team of qualified health and safety 

advisors in post to advise managers 

to discharge their duties.

In house Occupational Health team 

and Employee Assistant Programme 

in place.

A Compliance Officer for statutory 

property inspections is in post.

Inspection failure 

(Ofsted / CCQ).

Safeguarding processes and 

procedures  in place including regular 

audit.

Senior management audits of 

safeguarding processes.

Heads of Services 

(Adult Services)

Director of Adult 

Services

March 2020

Trauma for family and 

victim.

Pan-Lancashire Multi Agency Adult 

Safeguarding Polices and Procedures 

(Tri-X) in place.

Potential criminal 

charges for staff 

involved.

Robust supervision, training and 

personal development for social 

workers and managers. 

Significant liability 

claim received.

Contract monitoring and quality 

assurance procedures in place for 

commissioned services.

5 Failure to Keep People 

Safe 

3 15 Communities

Deliver the improvement identified in 

the recent OFSTED report.

Heads of Service Director of 

Children's Services

March 2020

Reputational damage.

5b Death, serious injury or 

harm of a vulnerable 

adult / child.

25% Continuous 

Improvement Plan. 

5 4 20 5

Organisational 

Resilience 

Safe and useable 

property portfolio in 

place.

A process to undertake property 

compliance audits at the Council's 

wholly owned  companies to be 

implemented.

Head of Property 

Services

Director of 

Resources

September 2019

5 4 20 5 3 155a Death or injury to a 

member of staff. 

25%

Target Date Council Priority Gross Risk 

Score

Controls and Mitigation Nett Risk 

Score

Further Actions Risk Manager CLT Risk OwnerNo Risk Sub-Risk % Overall 

Weighting 

Impact / Consequences Opportunity

P
age 23



                                                               Strategic Risk Register Progress Report                                                       APPENDIX 4(a) 

 

Sub 

No.

I L GS I L NS

Trauma for family and 

victim.

All trees in the borough are 

inspected and a programme of works 

is in place to protect against 

dangerous trees caused by storm 

damage or disease. 

Develop a specific tree care team and 

implement the work programme to 

reduce risks associated with trees.

Chief Operating 

Officer

Director of 

Community and 

Environmental 

Services

March 2020

Civil compensation 

claims.

Documented site inspection regimes 

for playgrounds and sporting areas.

Explore options for electronic 

monitoring system for playgrounds.

Chief Operating 

Officer

Director of 

Community and 

Environmental 

March 2020

Daily checks of life saving equipment 

on the promenade undertaken by 

the Beach Patrol Service. 

Health and Safety Management 

framework in place covering risks 

assessments, safe system of work, 

accident incidents reporting and 

investigations for public facilities 

such as Leisure Centres.

Council drivers assessed for driving 

competency and a programme of 

driving licence checks is in place.

Enforcement activity relating to shop 

signage and swimming pools safety 

prioritised in the Public Protection 

business plan.

Inadequate funding 

available to deliver 

crime reduction 

projects.

Secure external funding bids for 

community safety projects.

Prepare and implement a cost effective 

business case for the relocation and 

modernisation of the CCTV service.

Head of Community 

Safety Strategy

Director of Public 

Health

July 2019

Increased anti-social 

behaviour across 

communities.

Multi agency response to 

close/restrict, enforce and curtail 

problematic HMO's.

Inability to relocate the 

CCTV from its current 

location at the former 

Police Station.

Community involvement providing 

ownership of parks and green spaces.

Joint working arrangements in place 

between the Council and the Police. 

Funding provided for Police Officers 

dedicated to working in the Town 

Centre to tackle issues such as anti-

social behaviour and begging. 

Community Safety Team in place.

CLT Risk Owner Target Date Council Priority No Risk Sub-Risk % Overall 

Weighting 

Gross Risk 

Score

Controls and Mitigation Nett Risk 

Score

Further Actions Risk Manager

Increased incidents of 

crime and antisocial 

behaviour in parks and 

green spaces.

Overall Nett Risk Score 14.25

12 Communities

Continue to increase numbers 

accessing drug and alcohol services at 

an earlier stage and sustaining a 

positive outcome.

Head of Community 

Safety Strategy

Director of Public 

Health

March 2020

5d Residents do not feel 

safe in their 

communities.

25% Residents feel safe in 

their communities and 

the town centre.

4 4 16 4 3

20 5 3 15 Communities

Reputational damage. Consider surveillance 24/7 and include 

electronic maintenance for life saving 

equipment in situ on the promenade. 

Head of Tourism and 

Communication

Director of 

Communication 

and Regeneration 

March 2020

5c Death or injury to a 

member of the public.

25% A safe environment for 

residents to enjoy.

5 4

Impact / Consequences Opportunity

P
age 24



                                                               Strategic Risk Register Progress Report                                                       APPENDIX 4(a) 

Sub-Risk: Death or injury to a member of staff  
(weighting 25%) 

Gross Risk 
Score 

Nett Risk 
Score 

20 15 

Risk Score in 2018/2019 25 15 

 

Risk Owner:  Director of Resources 
 

Existing Controls in Place: 

 Full suite of health and safety arrangements and guidance notes available on the Hub. 

 Production of an Annual Health and Safety Report with recommendations outlining actions which CLT need to undertake to further embed health 
and safety. 

 Programme of health and safety management system audits in place. 

 A structure of health and safety committee meetings are in place. 

 Suite of health and safety training available for all employees. 

 Team of qualified health and safety advisors in post to advise managers to discharge their duties. 

 In house Occupational Health team and Employee Assistant Programme in place. 

 A Compliance Officer for statutory property inspections is in post. 

Actions: 

Actions Risk Manager Current Position Outcomes / Results 
Review the health and safety audit 
programme to increase visibility of 
the process, and buy-in to the 
recommendations. 
 
(Target Date:  March 2020) 

Head of Audit and 
Risk 

 The Corporate Leadership Team are now 
advised of the proposed health and safety 
audit plan at the beginning of each financial 
year. 

 General health and safety management and 
fire safety have been combined into one 
audit template to enable greater coverage. 

 All reports are now reviewed and issued by 
the Head of Audit and Risk to ensure 
consistency. 

 All reports are now issued to the Service 
Manager, Head of Service, relevant director 
and the Director of Resources (who has 

 Greater visibility, 
transparency and oversight 
of the health and safety 
audit process.   

P
age 25



                                                               Strategic Risk Register Progress Report                                                       APPENDIX 4(a) 

delegated responsibility for health and 
safety).   

Consider the potential of 
introducing an integrated health 
and safety IT system to enable the 
efficient reporting of accidents, 
recording of risk assessments and 
improving the functionality of the 
corporate warning register. 
 
(Target Date:  March 2021) 

Head of Audit and 
Risk  

 Options are currently being considered by 
the Health and Safety Team.  One such 
option is to seek functionality in the new 
HR, payroll and finance system which is 
currently being scoped prior to a tender 
exercise being undertaken. 

 There are a number of bespoke health and 
safety systems available in the market and 
the benefits of these are currently being 
considered. 

 A cross-directorate task and finish group 
has been set up to review the functionality 
of the corporate warning register and look 
at what improvements can be made. 

 Increased efficiency for 
managing health and safety 
across all services.   

A process to undertake property 
compliance audits at the Council's 
wholly owned companies to be 
implemented. 
 
(Target Date:  September 2019) 

Head of Property 
Services  

 Property Services have developed a 
methodology for undertaking compliance 
audits with the Council’s wholly owned 
companies. 

 The delivery of the compliance programme 
has been hindered due to a lack of 
resource, however it has now been agreed 
that the Fire Safety Advisor (currently in the 
Health and Safety Team) will transfer to 
Property Services on a permanent basis and 
will help deliver the audit programme.   

 Increased assurance for the 
Council that properties 
managed by our wholly 
owned companies are safe.   

 

 

 

 

P
age 26



                                                               Strategic Risk Register Progress Report                                                       APPENDIX 4(a) 

Sub-Risk: Death, serious injury or harm of a vulnerable adult/child. 
(weighting 25%) 

Gross Risk 
Score 

Nett Risk 
Score 

20 15 

Risk Score in 2018/2019 25 15 

 

Risk Owner:  Director of Adult Services / Director of Children’s Services 
 

Existing Controls in Place: 

 Safeguarding processes and procedures in place including regular audit. 

 Pan-Lancashire Multi Agency Adult Safeguarding Policies and Procedures (Tri-X) in place. 

 Robust supervision, training and personal development for social workers and managers. 

 Contract monitoring and quality assurance procedures in place for commissioned services. 

Actions: 

Actions Risk Manager Current Position Outcomes / Results 
Senior management audits of 
safeguarding processes. 
 
(Target Date: March 2020) 

Heads of Services 
(Adult Services) 

 Four members of SMT met in September to 
go through the proposed audit form and 
have made some suggestions and 
improvements, whilst also qualitatively 
reviewing a small number of the cases 
which have progressed to Further Enquiries 
(i.e. full safeguarding processes).  

 The next meeting will be in December, 
when they will start to use the updated 
qualitative audit form to complete an in-
depth review of 3 - 4 cases each quarter. 
The audit form is a more intensive look at 
areas such as recording standards, working 
in partnership, and making safeguarding 
personal, as well as ensuring processes 
have been followed. 

 Outcomes will be fed back 
to relevant practitioners 
where there are particular 
areas of either good practice 
or significant concern. 
Themes which arise will be 
addressed through the 
Safeguarding Leads meeting, 
in order to improve practice 
across the teams. 

 These audits are designed to 
complement the peer audits 
completed by staff on a 
quarterly basis, which give 
higher numbers of returns 
and a good general overview 
of practice.  

P
age 27



                                                               Strategic Risk Register Progress Report                                                       APPENDIX 4(a) 

Deliver the improvement identified 
in the recent OFSTED report. 
 
(Target Date: March 2020) 

Heads of Services 
(Children’s Services) 

 A robust improvement plan is in place 
which is being supported by the Council’s 
partners. 

 The Commissioner is satisfied that at this 
stage an alternative delivery model is not 
required for Children’s Services.   

 Department for Education support is being 
provided to the Council via the Partners in 
Practice forum. 

 The key risks to effective delivery of the 
improvement plan include the ability to 
recruit, and financial risks. 

 Audit activity is evidencing a 
steady improvement in 
practice. 

 OFSTED’s first monitoring 
visit has identified 
improvement in delivery.   

 

Sub-Risk: Death or injury to a member of the public  
(weighting 25%) 

Gross Risk 
Score 

Nett Risk 
Score 

20 15 

Risk Score in 2018/2019 25 15 

 

Risk Owner:  Director of Community and Environmental Services / Director of Communication and Regeneration 
 

Existing Controls in Place: 

 All trees in the borough are inspected and a programme of works is in place to protect against dangerous trees caused by storm damage or 
disease. 

 Documented site inspection regimes for playgrounds and sporting areas. 

 Daily checks of life saving equipment on the promenade undertaken by the Beach Patrol Service. 

 Health and Safety Management framework in place covering risks assessments, safe system of work, accident / incident reporting and 
investigations for public facilities such as Leisure Centres. 

 Council drivers assessed for driving competency and a programme of driving licence checks is in place. 

 Enforcement activity relating to shop signage and swimming pools safety prioritised in the Public Protection business plan. 

Actions: 
Actions Risk Manager Current Position Outcomes / Results 

P
age 28



                                                               Strategic Risk Register Progress Report                                                       APPENDIX 4(a) 

Develop a specific tree care team 
and implement the work 
programme to reduce risks 
associated with trees. 
 
(Target Date:  March 2020) 

Head of Leisure, 
Parks and Catering  

 The Parks Services Manager is currently 
developing a proactive work plan for the 
tree gang to ensure a planned and 
documented approach to tree maintenance 
and management. 

 A new 30 hour per week post funded by 
Highways has recently been filled to ensure 
maintenance of highway trees on a 
proactive basis. 

 Proactive, planned approach 
ensure risks associated with 
trees is reduced. 

Explore options for electronic 
monitoring system for playgrounds. 
 
(Target Date:  March 2020) 

Head of Leisure, 
Parks and Catering 

 Demo meetings with potential software 
companies scheduled for November, 
involving ICT, procurement and health and 
safety.   

 More robust record keeping 
relating to playground 
maintenance.   

Consider surveillance 24/7 and 
include electronic maintenance for 
life saving equipment in situ on the 
promenade.  
 
 
(Target Date:  March 2020) 

Head of Tourism and 
Communication 

 A Beach Patrol Team is employed all year 
round and is supplemented by additional 
staffing in the summer season where risks 
increase. 

 Look out points are in place north and 
south and plans are being considered to 
introduce a look out point in the central 
area. 

 The team are equipped with a range of 
equipment, including quad bikes, to help 
them respond quickly. 

 Lifesaving equipment is subject to a regular 
and frequent inspection regime by the 
team.  The implementation of an electronic 
system has not been pursued at this stage 
due to the high risk of the equipment / 
cables etc. being stolen due to their low-
lying location.   

 A range of health and safety risk 
assessments are in place and these are 

 Beach Patrol prepare an 
Annual Report which 
enables the prevalence of 
incidents to be monitored.   

P
age 29



                                                               Strategic Risk Register Progress Report                                                       APPENDIX 4(a) 

further reviewed and enhanced for 
individual events that take place.   

Sub-Risk: Residents do not feel safe in their communities  
(weighting 25%) 

Gross Risk 
Score 

Nett Risk 
Score 

16 12 

Risk Score in 2018/2019 n/a n/a 
 

Risk Owner:  Director of Public Health / Director of Community and Environmental Services 
 

Existing Controls in Place: 

 Secure external funding bids for community safety projects. 

 Multi agency response to close/restrict, enforce and curtail problematic HMO's. 

 Community involvement providing ownership of parks and green spaces. 

 Joint working arrangements in place between the Council and the Police. 

 Funding provided for Police Officers dedicated to working in the Town Centre to tackle issues such as anti-social behaviour and begging. 

 Community Safety Team in place. 

Actions: 

Actions Risk Manager Current Position Outcomes / Results 
Prepare and implement a cost 
effective business case for the 
relocation and modernisation of 
the CCTV service. 
 
(Target Date:  July 2019) 

Director of 
Community and 
Environmental 

Services 

 Responsibility for CCTV has now transferred 
to the Director of Community and 
Environmental Services who will be 
entering into discussions with partner 
agencies about funding an improved CCTV 
function. 

 Once these discussions have been held a 
business case setting out the feasibility of 
modernising the system will be prepared.   

 Fit for purpose CCTV system 
implemented.   

Continue to increase numbers 
accessing drug and alcohol services 
at an earlier stage and sustaining a 
positive outcome. 
 
(Target Date:  March 2020) 

Director of Public 
Health  

 Public Health are in the process of 
preparing a Drug Strategy and an Alcohol 
Strategy which will inform the actions 
which need to be taken to address this risk.   

 Less drug and alcohol abuse 
/ addiction in the town.   

 

P
age 30



 

Report to: AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Relevant Officer: Mark Towers, Director of Governance and Partnerships 

Date of Meeting:  23 January 2020 

 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2018-2019 HALF-YEAR REVIEW 
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To provide the Audit Committee with an update on progress made on the actions 
identified in the Annual Governance Statement 2018-2019. 
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 To consider the Annual Governance Statement half-year review for 2018/2019.  
 
3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015) require the Council to conduct a review 
on the effectiveness of its system of internal control and publish an Annual 
Governance Statement reporting on the review with the Statement of Accounts. Best 
practice states that this should be a continual process throughout the year and not 
just undertaken as an annual exercise.  
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

 N/a 
 

4.0 Council priority: 
 

4.1 The Annual Governance Statement is relevant to all Council priorities.  
 

5.0 Background Information 
 

5.1 
 
 

Blackpool Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards.  It needs to ensure that public money 
is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5



effectively.   

The CIPFA Delivering Good Governance publication (2016) defines the various 
principles of good governance in the public sector and how they relate to each other 
and are defined as: 

 Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values 
and respecting the rule of law. 

 Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement. 

 Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and 
environmental benefits. 

 Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the 
intended outcomes. 

 Developing the Council’s capacity, including its leadership and the individuals 
within it. 

 Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong 
public financial management. 

 Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit, to deliver 
effective accountability. 

The governance framework at Blackpool Council comprises the systems and 
processes, culture and values which the Council has adopted in order to deliver on 
the above principles.  The system of internal control is a significant part of the 
framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level.  It cannot eliminate 
all risk of failure to achieve policies and objectives and can therefore only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.   

This report provides an update in terms of the progress which has been made in 
implementing the actions identified in the Annual Governance Statement. 

 
 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 

 
No 

 List of Appendices:  
  

Appendix 5(a) – Annual Governance Statement 2018-2019 Half-Year 
Review 
 

 

6.0 Legal considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015) require the Council to conduct a review, 
at least once a year, on the effectiveness of its system of internal control and include 
an Annual Governance Statement reporting on the review with the Statement of 
Accounts.  

 
7.0 Human Resources considerations: 

Page 32



 
7.1 
 

There are no additional human resource implications as a result of this report. 
 

8.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

There are no equalities considerations as this is a monitoring report. 
 

9.0 Financial considerations: 
 

9.1 
 

Each of the actions identified in the Annual Governance Statement will be delivered 
within the constraints of the agreed budget for 2018/2019.  
 

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1 Risk management and the control environment have been considered throughout 
the draft of the Annual Governance Statement.  
 

11.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

This report is in line with the Council’s values in particular to be accountable. 
 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 
 

In October 2016 a Good Governance Group was formed at the Council.  One of the 

roles of the group will be to prepare the Annual Governance Statement and oversee 

the delivery of the identified actions. 

The Good Governance Group comprises of: 

 Director of Governance and Partnerships 

 Head of Audit and Risk 

 Chief Accountant 

 Head of ICT 

 Transformation Manager 

 Head of Democratic Governance 

 Strategic Equality and Diversity Manager 

 Head of HR and Organisational Development 

 Head of Legal Services 

 Head of Information Governance  

 
13.0 Background papers: 

 
13.1 
 

None. 
 

Page 33



 
 

Page 34



                APPENDIX 5(a) 
 
Annual Governance Statement 2018-2019 Half-Year Review 
 

Issue Actions 
Responsible 

Officer (s) 
Target Date Half-Year Progress 

Code of Conduct and 
Behaviours 

Review the Government response to 
the consultation on Intimidation in 
Office issued by the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life and assess 
whether the Council needs to put 
additional arrangements in place for 
elected members.  This should include 
ensuring that all elected members are 
aware of the mitigations in place to 
prevent intimidation and delivering 
training to members for dealing with 
threatening situations.   

Director of 
Governance 
and 
Partnerships  

Before mid-
term review 

Partially Implemented  

As of 6/1/20, the Government’s 
response to the proposed 
consultation changes is still 
awaited.  A number of the best 
practice recommendations have 
been implemented and a joint 
workshop is due to be held with 
Fylde Borough Council to 
consider others.  

Consider the potential national changes 
to the Standards framework and 
implement any changes identified as 
part of this. 

Director of 
Governance 
and 
Partnerships 

Before mid-
term review  

Awaiting Information  

As of 6/1/20, the Government’s 
response to the proposed 
consultation changes is still 
awaited.   

Commitment to 
Openness, 

Continue to deliver the channel shift 
agenda to improve accessibility to 

Director of 
Resources 

After mid-
term review 

Partially Implemented 

P
age 35



Issue Actions 
Responsible 

Officer (s) 
Target Date Half-Year Progress 

Communication and 
Consultation  

residents and reduce demand on 
Council resources.   

Channel shift projects continue to 
be rolled out with new projects 
identified for the next phase.  

Implement a Community Engagement 
Strategy and supported guidance to 
ensure a coordinate and robust 
approach is in place.     

Director of 
Public Health 

Before mid-
term review 

Partially Implemented  

The Policy and Strategy are both 
in draft form awaiting feedback 
from the Community 
Engagement Steering Group and 
then elected members will be 
approached for feedback before 
final approval. Expected 
completion before the end of the 
financial year. 

Continue to deliver the web 
development plan ensuring that the 
Council adheres to the new accessibility 
requirements which are being 
introduced. 

Director of 
Communication 
and 
Regeneration 

After mid-
term review  

Partially implemented 

The corporate website, Blackpool 
Unlimited website and the Visit 
Blackpool website are all being 
reviewed.  

Consider using targeted social media 
groups for specific groups of residents 
to share relevant information.  

Director of 
Communication 
and 
Regeneration 

After mid-
term review  

Implemented 

The Communications Team target 
specific groups of residents with 
specific messages using social 
media and also more traditional 

P
age 36



Issue Actions 
Responsible 

Officer (s) 
Target Date Half-Year Progress 

forms of marketing and 
communication.  

Undertake an evaluation of the benefits 
of a Wigan deal approach to 
communications and engagement and if 
it would be of value to Blackpool / what 
we can learn from it.  

Director of 
Public Health  

After mid-
term review 

Partially Implemented 

The Wigan deal has been 
considered as part of the 
implementation of the audit 
recommendations and changes 
are being adopted where 
appropriate.   

Developing, 
Communicating and 
Translating the Vision 

Deliver an employee conference which 
ensures that all staff are aware of how 
their role fits into the overall vision of 
the Council building on the findings of 
the employee survey. 

Chief Executive  
Before mid-
term review 

Partially Implemented 

The Big Staff Conference took 
place on 5th November 2019 and 
was attended by over 700 
employees. The theme of the 
conference was ‘Making a 
Difference’ and it consisted of 
speeches and 5 workshops.  

A decision was taken not to send 
out the employee survey until 
early 2020.    

Roles and 
Responsibilities 

Role descriptions for key elected 
member responsibility areas should be 
developed identifying the knowledge 
required for the role, competencies, 

Director of 
Governance 

Before mid-
term review  

Implemented  

Role descriptions were developed 
for key roles as part of the 

P
age 37



Issue Actions 
Responsible 

Officer (s) 
Target Date Half-Year Progress 

behaviours, time commitment and the 
requirement to attend training.   

and 
Partnerships 

induction information which 
included knowledge, 
competencies and time 
commitment.  The training offer 
has been developed as part of 
the Members’ Induction 
Programme. 

Compliance with 
Relevant Laws, 
Regulations, Internal 
Policies and Procedures 

 

Ensure that data protection training is 
rolled out to staff who do not have IT 
access, monitor and renew the Council’s 
Information Asset Register and start a 
programme of GDPR compliance audits 
to ensure continued compliance with 
GDPR.   

Director of 
Governance 
and 
Partnerships 

Before mid-
term review 

Partially Implemented 

Data Protection training has been 
rolled out to staff who do not 
have IT access and the IG Team is 
in the process of chasing 
outstanding compliance. 

The IG Team now has 2 GDPR 
Certificated IG Specialists in situ 
and a programme of compliance 
audits has begun within 2 
Directorates (Governance and 
Adults). This will be expanded to 
the remaining Directorates in 
2020. 

Ensure that the recommendations 
highlighted in the Ofsted Report on 

Director of 
Children’s 
Services 

Before mid-
term review 

Partially implemented  

Since the inspection the 
recommendations made by 

P
age 38



Issue Actions 
Responsible 

Officer (s) 
Target Date Half-Year Progress 

Children’s Services are adequately 
addressed. 

OFSTED have been articulated in 
clear plans which have driven the 
work of the senior leadership 
team in Children’s Social Care.  
The plans have been monitored 
through the “Getting to Good” 
board and regularly reviewed by 
the Chief Executive, lead member 
for children’s services and Leader 
of the Council.    
Since the inspection the Council 
has been subject to scrutiny from 
the DfE appointed commissioner 
who confirmed that the authority 
was leading the required change 
effectively in her report in June 
2019.   
In August 2019 and December 
2019, OFSTED have undertaken 
monitoring visits to review 
progress and have noted areas of 
improvement against their 
recommendations, particularly 
with reference to the Multi 
Agency Safeguarding Hub, the 

P
age 39



Issue Actions 
Responsible 

Officer (s) 
Target Date Half-Year Progress 

“front door” to children’s social 
care services.  
Plans continue align with the 
recommendations in to 2020 and 
will continue to reference them 
until the point of a re-inspection. 

Strengthen contract management 
across the Council including improved 
measurement of social value, launch of 
an iPool course and exploration of 
software tools.   

Director of 
Resources 

After mid-
term review 

Partially Implemented 

A Contract Management iPool 
course was launched in 
September 2019.   

A Social Value Co-ordinator has 
been recruited who starts at the 
Council in January 2020.    

An internal audit of Contract 
Management and Social Value 
has been undertaken with the 
findings to be discussed at the 
Corporate Leadership Team to 
encourage further improvements.  

Improve the recording and scrutiny of 
driving at work documentation for the 
Council’s grey fleet. 

Director of 
Communities 
and 
Environmental 
Services 

Before mid-
term review 

Implemented 

A Driving at Work app has been 
developed and all employees 
who use their own vehicles on 
Council business are required to 

P
age 40



Issue Actions 
Responsible 

Officer (s) 
Target Date Half-Year Progress 

complete this.  Failure to do so 
will result in mileage payments 
being suspended until the 
employees do comply.   

Audit Arrangements 
Ensure that effective working relations 
are developed with the Council’s new 
external auditors. 

Director of 
Resources 

Before mid-
term review 

Partially Implemented  

An initial relationship meeting 
with Deloitte took place on 8th 
November 2018 to discuss the 
2018/19 year-end audit process 
and also identified the main staff 
contacts for the Council and 
Deloitte. 

This was followed by two interim 
audits during November 2018 
and March 2019.   

The Audit team was on site from 
1st June to 31st July 2019.However 
due to outstanding audit work 
the Statement of Accounts was 
not signed off by the 31st July 
2019 statutory deadline. 

Further audit work has been 
undertaken since the Accounts 
went to the Audit Committee on 

P
age 41



Issue Actions 
Responsible 

Officer (s) 
Target Date Half-Year Progress 

the 25th July 2019 and it is 
expected that they were signed-
off by the Audit Committee on 
the 27th November 2019. 

Steps will be taken to strengthen 
relationships going forward.   

Counter Fraud and Anti-
Corruption 
Arrangements 

Implement joint working for 
investigations with the Department for 
Work and Pensions. 

Director of 
Resources 

Before mid-
term review  

Implemented 

Joint working arrangements for 
fraud investigation with the DWP 
are now in place.  These focus on 
cases where there is an interest 
in a joint prosecution such as 
where benefit and council tax 
fraud is suspected.   

Scrutiny Arrangements 

Deliver the actions arising from the 
review of the scrutiny function by North 
West Employers via the working group 
which has been established.   

Director of 
Governance 
and 
Partnerships 

Before mid-
term review 

Partially Implemented  

The following actions have been 
implemented as a result from the 
scrutiny review: 

-Establishment of Scrutiny 
Leadership Board and report into 
Council 

- scrutiny committees have a 
greater role in policy 

P
age 42



Issue Actions 
Responsible 

Officer (s) 
Target Date Half-Year Progress 

development and financial 
monitoring 

- establishment of a programme 
of scrutiny task and finish reviews 

- regular scheduled dialogue 
between scrutiny Chairs and the 
Executive 

- regular items on scrutiny at 
Corporate Leadership Team 
meetings 

- development of scrutiny 
training programme 

A process for capturing the 
impact and outcomes of scrutiny 
is currently being developed. 

Learning and Developing 

 

Develop an information pack for 
managers to use with casual and agency 
staff for CLT approved mandatory 
training. 

Chief Executive 
Before mid-
term review  

Partially implemented 

A decision has been made that 
agency and casual employees 
who utilise Council devices 
should complete the iPool 
modules for ICT Security and 
GDPR and work is underway to 
implement this. 

P
age 43



Issue Actions 
Responsible 

Officer (s) 
Target Date Half-Year Progress 

In addition, for the many casual 
workers who do not utilise 
Council devices, workbooks are 
available for the other mandatory 
iPool courses which can be used 
by Managers. 

ICT is considering the use of an 
app which would enable a more 
streamlined process to be put in 
place. 

Ensure that succession planning is 
embedded in the appraisal process.   

Chief Executive 
Before mid-
term review 

Implemented 

A succession planning guide for 
managers has been developed 
and was launched alongside IPA 
2019. 

Deliver a Leadership Development 
Programme based on the outcome of 
the Leadership Survey. 

Chief Executive 
After mid-
term review 

Implemented 

The programme of Leadership 
training is in place and has been 
approved by CLT. 

Continue the roll-out of Windows 10 
incorporating training on how to work 
smarter using Office 365.  

Director of 
Resources 

After mid-
term review 

Partially Implemented  

As of the 8th January 2020 we are 
now in the last 5% of completing 
the Windows 10 roll-out.   

P
age 44



Issue Actions 
Responsible 

Officer (s) 
Target Date Half-Year Progress 

Take up of Office 365 training is 
lagging behind the roll-out with 
about 50% take up so far. We 
have trained 1,157 employees to 
date.  

Encourage the use of a buddy system / 
mentoring arrangements for newly 
elected members.   

Director of 
Governance 
and 
Partnerships 

Before mid-
term review 

Implemented 

This has been raised with 
members but there is little 
appetite for a formal mentoring 
system, with a preference for 
informal mentoring within 
political groups.  
 

Partnership and Joint 
Working  

Consider how elected members can 
network with other public sector 
partners at neighbourhood level. 

Director of 
Public Health 

 

After mid-
term review 

 

Implemented 

The Community Engagement 
Strategy and Toolkit both 
encourage members to be 
notified of activity within their 
wards. 

 
 

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to: 
 
Relevant Officer: 
 
Date of meeting 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Nick Rayner, Senior Manager, Deloitte LLP 
 
23 January 2020 

 
 

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2018/2019 
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To provide the Audit Committee with details of the Annual Audit Letter on the 
2018/2019 External Audit. 
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 
 

To consider the External Auditor’s Annual Audit Letter for 2018/19. 

 
3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 
 
 

Deloitte have set out the Annual Audit Letter in order to summarise the key matters 
arising from the work that has been carried out in respect of the year ended 31 
March 2019.  

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

 None 
 
4.0 Council Priority: 

 
4.1 Deliver quality services through a professional, well-rewarded and motivated 

workforce. 
 
5.0 Background Information 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 6



5.1 
 
 

At the previous meeting on 27 November 2019 the Audit Committee approved the 
audited Statement of Accounts for 2018/2019. 

5.2 
 

Mr Nick Rayner, Senior Manager, Deloitte will be in attendance to present the report. 
 

5.3 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No 

5.4 List of Appendices:  
 Appendix 6(a) -  Annual Audit Letter on the 2018/2019 External Audit 

 
6.0 Legal considerations: 

 
6.1 
 

None 
 

7.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

7.1 
 

None 
 

8.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

None 

9.0 Financial considerations: 
 

9.1 
 

None 
 

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1 None 
 

11.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

None 
 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 
 

The Annual Audit Letter has been discussed and agreed with the Council’s Chief 
Finance Officer. 
  

13.0 Background papers: 
 

13.1 
 

None 
 

 

Page 48



Error! No text of specified style in document. | Error! Use the Home tab to apply Section title to the text that you want to appear 

here. 

01/14  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annual Audit Letter on the 

2018/19 External Audit 

Blackpool Council 
January 2020 

 

 

 

Page 49

elaine.ireland
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 6(a)



Blackpool Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

2   

Contents 
 

 

  Page 

1 Letter to Members 3 

2 Key Messages 4 

3 Responsibilities and Scope 6 

4 Audit of the Accounts 7 

5 Value for Money 10 

6 Other Matters 12 

 

 

  

Page 50



Blackpool Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

3   

1. Letter to Members 
 

The Members  

Blackpool Council 

One Bickerstaffe Square 

Talbot Road 

Blackpool 

FY1 3AH 

 

14 January 2020 

 

Dear Sirs 

We have pleasure in setting out this Annual Audit Letter to summarise the key matters arising 

from the work that we have carried out in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019. 

Although this letter is addressed to the Members of City of Blackpool Borough Council (“the 

Authority”), it is also intended to communicate the significant issues we have identified, in an 

accessible style, to key external stakeholders, including members of the public.  The letter will 

be published on the Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd website at www.psaa.co.uk and on 

the Authority’s website. 

This letter has been prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and 

Audited Bodies issued by the Audit Commission.  This is available from www.psaa.co.uk. 

This letter has been discussed and agreed with the Chief Finance Officer.  A copy of the letter 

will be provided to all Members. 

This is our first year as the external auditor of the Authority following the transition of the PSAA 

contract in 2018/19. We would like to take this opportunity to thank you for your assistance and 

co-operation during this year’s external audit.  Our aim is to provide a high standard of audit, 

delivering insights identified from our audit work to make a positive and practical contribution, 

which supports the Authority’s own agenda.  We recognise the value of your co-operation and 

support. 

 

 

Deloitte LLP 

Leeds, United Kingdom  

Page 51

http://www.psaa.co.uk/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/


Blackpool Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

4   

2. Key Messages 
Statement of Accounts 

Unmodified 

opinion issued 

for the year 

ended 31 March 

2019 

In 2018/19 the Authority was required to prepare its Statement of Accounts in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as 

defined in the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 

Kingdom 2018/19 and other relevant legislation. 

Through our audit planning we identified four significant risks of material 

misstatement which we addressed through our audit. These were: 

 Completeness and cut off of service line expenditure; 

 Accuracy of valuation of property assets; 

 Valuation of pension liabilities; and 

 Management override of controls. 

Materiality for the Authority’s accounts was set at £9,378,060. 

We issued an unmodified audit opinion on the financial statements for the 

year ended 31 March 2019 on 29 November 2019. As part of our audit, we 

identified a large number of adjustments to the financial statements, which 

led to the significant delay in the approval and signing of the accounts. In 

addition to this there were a small number of unadjusted misstatements which 

are set out on page 9. 

 

Value for Money conclusion 

Qualified ‘except 

for’ opinion 

issued for the 

year ended 31 

March 2019 

We are required to base our statutory Value for Money (VfM) conclusion on 

the criteria specified by the National Audit Office, namely whether the 

Authority has in place proper arrangements to ensure it took properly 

informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable 

outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 

Through our audit planning we identified two significant VfM risks which we 

addressed. These were: 

 Financial sustainability; and 

 Ofsted findings. 

We have issued an ‘except for’ qualification to the VfM Conclusion in respect of 

Children’s social care services due to the findings of the Ofsted inspection and 

the overall ‘Inadequate’ rating.  

 

Page 52



Blackpool Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

5   

Annual Governance Statement 

All relevant 

governance 

matters were 

adequately and 

appropriately 

disclosed 

We have reviewed the Council’s Annual Report & Annual Governance 

Statement to consider whether it is misleading or inconsistent with other 

information known to us from our audit work.  

The Annual Governance Statement complies with the Delivering Good 

Governance guidance issued by CIPFA/SOLACE. 

We suggested a number of minor changes to management for consideration 

which have been made. 

 

Whole of Government accounts  

The Authority is 

below the audit 

threshold 

 

The Authority prepares a consolidation pack to support the production of 

Whole of Government Accounts by HM Treasury. We are not required to 

review this pack as the Authority falls below the threshold where an audit is 

required.  

As required we have confirmed this fact to the National Audit Office which was 

done following the signing of the accounts. 

 

 

Audit findings 

A number of 

recommendation 

were made to 

improve internal 

controls and 

financial 

reporting. 

During our audit we identified a number of areas for improvement in internal 

controls and procedures which were communicated to management and the 

Audit Committee.   

 

Audit Certificate  

We issued our 

certificate on 29 

November 2019 

We issued our certificate on 29 November 2019. The certificate confirms that 

we have concluded the audit for 2018/19 in accordance with the requirements 

of the Local Audit & Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice. 

 

Certification of grants and returns 

We will undertake 

work on three 

returns in relation 

to 2018/19. 

We have completed our work in relation to the Housing Benefit Subsidy and 

the Teachers’ pension return and we issued unqualified reports on 28 

November 2019. 

Our work in relation to the Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts return will be 

completed ahead of the reporting deadline of 7 February 2020. 

 

  

Page 53



Blackpool Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

6   

3. Responsibilities and Scope 
Responsibilities of the Authority and Auditors 

The Authority is responsible for maintaining the control environment and accounting records and 

preparing the accounting statements in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 based on IFRS and other relevant legislation.  

We are appointed as the Authority’s independent external auditors by Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited (PSAA), the body responsible for appointing auditors to local public bodies in 

England.  

As the Authority’s appointed external auditor, we are responsible for planning and carrying out an 

audit that meets the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice (“the Code”).  

Under the Code, we have responsibilities in two main areas: 

 auditing the Authority’s accounts; and 

 evaluating whether the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources (the value for money conclusion). 

The scope of our work 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) as 

adopted by the UK Auditing Practices Board (“APB”).  The audit opinion on the accounts reflects the 

financial reporting framework adopted by the Authority, being the Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 based on IFRS and other relevant legislation.   

We conducted our work on the value for money conclusion in line with guidance issued by the 

National Audit Office in November 2017, in respect of local government bodies for the financial year 

ended 31 March 2019.  

 

  

Page 54



Blackpool Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

7   

4. Audit of the Accounts 
Statement of Accounts 

Unmodified opinion 

on the financial 

statements issued 

for the year ended 

31 March 2019 

We issued an unmodified opinion on the Authority’s accounts for the year 

ended 31 March 2019. 

Before we give our opinion on the accounts, we are required to report to Those 

Charged with Governance any significant matters arising from the audit.  A 

detailed report was discussed with the members of the Audit Committee on 25 

July 2019 and an additional update was provided on 27 November 2019. 

 

Materiality We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial 

statements that makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality 

both in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of 

our work. 

Based on our professional judgement, materiality for the Authority’s accounts 

was set at £9,378,060 which equated to 2% of gross expenditure. This 

benchmark was chosen as the Authority is a non-profit organisation and total 

expenditure is a key measure of financial performance for users of the financial 

statements.  

The level of materiality shapes and informs the extent of the audit work we 

undertook, including review of balances which are below this which exhibit 

particular characteristics. This assists in the identification of transactions and 

balances which were likely to give rise to material misstatements, and in 

determining the extent of work undertaken in respect of the areas we judged 

to contain such risks.  

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee 

all uncorrected audit differences in excess of £469,900, as well as differences 

below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative 

grounds. We would also report to the Audit Committee on any uncorrected 

disclosure matters identified when assessing the overall presentation of the 

financial statements.  

Significant Risks Our audit work was designed to specifically address the following significant 

audit risks which are presented in further detail below. Significant audit risks 

are the areas deemed to be those with the greatest potential of being 

materially incorrect in the financial statements and are therefore areas of 

greater focus for the audit team.  

Whether the Statement of Accounts contained all of the expenditure 

relating to the year ended 31 March 2019 (Completeness and cut off of 

expenditure) – We obtained an understanding of the controls in place that 

management rely upon to ensure that year-end transactions are correctly 

brought into (accrued) the expenditure reported for the year. We selected a 

sample of items recorded in expenditure in April to May 2019 and confirmed 

that they had been charged to the correct accounting period.  

Page 55



Blackpool Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

8   

 Whether the disclosed value of assets subject to revaluation 

differs materially from the year end fair value– We obtained an 

understanding of the key controls in place around the revaluation of the 

Authority’s property and performed detailed testing of the revalued 

assets including seeking the view of our internal valuation specialists as 

to whether the methodology employed by the Authority appeared 

reasonable. We also reviewed the approach used by the Council to 

assess the risk that assets not subject to revaluation are materially 

misstated. From our work, we have not identified any material issues 

with the Authority’s valuations but we have raised a number of 

recommendations in relation to the Authority’s processes around the 

property valuation. 

 Whether the Authority’s pension liability in respect of the 

Lancashire County Pension Fund is fairly stated - The valuation of 

the Scheme relies on a number of assumptions, including actuarial, 

financial and demographic assumptions and there is a risk that these do 

not reflect the profile of the Authority’s employees and are not 

reasonable. We obtained an understanding of the controls in place to 

ensure the Authority reviews the assumptions used and that the 

information sent to the Actuary is complete and accurate. Our actuarial 

specialist reviewed the assumptions used and we reviewed the 

accounting disclosures in respect of pensions. Particular challenges 

faced by the Authority in 2018/19 related to assessing the impact on 

the reported pension liabilities from the recent McCloud legal 

judgement. 

 Whether the Authority’s controls had been bypassed by 

management in the preparation of the financial statements 

(Management override of controls) – We obtained an 

understanding of the key controls in place around journal entries and 

judgements made in the preparation of the financial statements. Using 

Computer Assisted Auditing Tools we identified a number of journals 

which exhibited characteristics of audit interest and performed detailed 

testing on these journals. We also reviewed the key accounting 

judgements for bias. Our work did not identify any errors requiring 

correction. 

Overall opinion We issued an unmodified opinion on the financial statements for the year 

ended 31 March 2019 on the 29 November 2019. 

Key issues from work performed on the Statement of Accounts 

Misstatements 

identified 
We received a set of draft accounts in line with the agreed deadline, which 

were supported by working papers.  The finance staff were helpful throughout 

the process. 

From our audit we identified a wide range of issues, including misstatements in 

the comparative financial information, these were communicated to the 

Authority for correction. 

Following corrections the final Statement of Accounts upon which we issued 

our opinion contained four uncorrected misstatements above our clearly trivial 

threshold, an overstatement of grants received in advance (£1.8m), an 

overstatement of the insurance provision (£1m), a judgemental overstatement 

Page 56



Blackpool Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

9   

of Council debtors (£0.5m), and a judgemental overstatement of debtors 

within one of the Authority’s subsidiaries (£0.5m).  

Annual Governance Statement 

The Statement 

includes all 

appropriate 

disclosures and is 

consistent with our 

understanding of 

the Authority’s 

governance 

arrangements 

As appointed auditor, we review the Annual Governance Statement (“AGS”) 

and comment on any inconsistencies noted between the AGS and our audit 

work, other work relating to the Code of Audit Practice, and our understanding 

of the Authority’s Governance arrangements.  

We have concluded that the Statement includes all appropriate disclosures and 

is consistent with our understanding of the Authority’s governance 

arrangements and internal controls derived from our audit work. 

Powers and Duties 

We did not receive 

any questions 

about the accounts 

or make any public 

interest reports 

Under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors have specific 

powers and duties, including to give electors the opportunity to raise questions 

about the accounts and to consider and decide upon objections received in 

relation to the accounts. We did not receive any such questions or objections. 

We have a duty to consider whether to issue a report in the public interest 

about something we believe the Authority should consider, or if the public 

should know about.  

We have not identified any matters that would require us to issue a public 

interest report. 

Whole of Government Accounts return 

The Authority is 

below the audit 

threshold 

 

The Authority prepares a consolidation pack to support the production of 

Whole of Government Accounts by HM Treasury. We are not required to review 

this pack as the Authority falls below the threshold where an audit is required.  

As required we have confirmed this fact to the National Audit Office which was 

done following the signing of the accounts. 

Audit Certificate  

We issued our 

certificate on 29 

November 2019 

We issued our certificate on 29 November 2019. The certificate confirms that 

we have concluded the audit for 2018/19 in accordance with the requirements 

of the Local Audit & Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice. 

 

  

Page 57



Blackpool Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

10   

5. Value for Money 
Background and approach 

We are required to issue a value for money (“VfM”) conclusion within our report on the Authority 

financial statements.  We are required to base our VfM conclusion on criteria specified by the 

National Audit Office (“NAO”) where we are required to be satisfied that proper arrangements have 

been made to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources. Our assessment 

is based on the following reporting criterion: 

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly 

informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for 

taxpayers and local people.” 

The following sub-criteria are then used to inform and guide our work and inform our overall 

judgement although there is no requirement to separate these nor to report against each sub-

criteria: 

 Informed decision making; 

 Sustainable resource deployment; and 

 Working with partners and other third parties. 

We would emphasise that it is the arrangements in place that we are required to assess, and not 

the actual decisions made by the Authority. 

We planned our local programme of work based on our risk assessment, which was informed by a 

series of risk factors determined by the National Audit Office. 

The key audit risks we identified as part of our overall audit strategy were: 

 Financial sustainability; and 

 Ofsted findings in respect of Children’s Services. 

Financial sustainability 

We have considered the financial standing of the Authority through review of the outturn in 

2018/19, budgets for 2019/20 and the medium term financial plan.  The Authority is clearly facing 

significant financial challenges but we have no specific concerns over the response to those 

challenges or the financial standing of the Authority. 

We have considered the financial standing of the Authority as at 31 March 2019. We have assessed 

this based on current/on-going expenditure demands, expected income levels and the current cash 

position of the Authority.  The current level of usable reserves is adequate in light of the Authority’s 

current risk assessment.    

 

Ofsted findings in respect of Children’s Services 

Having performed our work in line with guidance received from the National Audit Office we issued 

an ‘except for’ qualification to the value for money conclusion for the 2018/19 financial year.   

On 17 January 2019, Ofsted published a report in relation to their inspection of the Authority’s 

Children’s social care services, which provided an overall grading of ‘inadequate’.  The report 

Page 58



Blackpool Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

11   

Ofsted findings in respect of Children’s Services 

concluded that there were longstanding and widespread failures in the quality of social work 

practice that means that many children are not having their needs responded to in the right way or 

at the right time. Inspectors found cases of children in the services for whom risk had not been 

identified and where appropriate action had not been taken to help and protect them. 

Since the inspection the Authority has dedicated significant attention, time and investment to this 

matter going into 2019/20. The most recent report on progress from the Commissioner’s review 

(July 2019) found that staff have reported substantial improvement since January 2019 with clearer 

guidance, better training, support, communisation and engagement but that the system changes 

required will take time.  

 VfM Conclusion 

Based on the work undertaken we have issued an ‘except for’ qualification to the VfM Conclusion in 

respect of Children’s social care services as the Authority’s did not put in place proper arrangements 

to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned 

sustainable outcomes, including working with partners for the year ended 31 March 2019.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 59



Blackpool Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

12   

6. Other Matters 
Reports issued 

Reports issued during the course of the 2018/19 audit included: 

 fee letter for the Authority; 

 audit plans for the Authority; 

 reports to those charged with governance on the 2018/19 audit of the Authority; and 

 an annual audit letter.  

 

 

 

 

 
Analysis of audit fees 

Audit fees charged are as follows:   

 2019 
 £ 

Total fees for the audit of the Authority’s annual accounts, VfM conclusion and 
whole of government accounts return 

84,818 

Additional fees for addressing issues identified by the audit 25,000* 

Additional fees for Housing Revenue Account review 15,000 

  

Total audit fees 124,818 

Fees payable in relation to Housing Benefit Assurance Programme work 10,250 

Grant certification 8,000 

Total assurance services 18,250 

Total fees (excluding VAT) 143,068 

 

 

* Subject to review and agreement by the Council. 

 

 

 

 

April   February   July   December 

   
2018  2019   2019   2019    

Fee letter 

Audit plan 

Report to those 

charged with 

governance 

Annual Audit Letter 

Housing Benefit 

Assurance 

Programme  

Page 60



Blackpool Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

13   

Independence and objectivity 

In our professional judgement, our policies and safeguards that are in place ensure that we are 

independent within the meaning of all regulatory and professional requirements and that the 

objectivity of the audit partner and audit staff is not impaired.   

We confirm that we comply with FRC Ethical Standards for Auditors and that, in our professional 

judgement, we and, where applicable, all Deloitte network firms are independent and our 

objectivity is not compromised. 

In our opinion there are no inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standards for Auditors and the 

Council’s policy for the supply of non-audit services or any apparent breach of that policy. We 

continue to review our independence and ensure that appropriate safeguards are in place 

including, but not limited to, the rotation of senior partners and professional staff and the 

involvement of additional partners and professional staff to carry out reviews of the work 

performed and to otherwise advise as necessary. 

We are required to provide written details of all relationships (including the provision of non-audit 

services) between us and the organisation, its board and senior management and its affiliates, 

including all services provided by us and the DTTL network to the Council, its members and senior 

management and its affiliates, and other services provided to other known connected parties that 

we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on our objectivity and independence.   

We are not aware of any relationships which are required to be disclosed.  

No matters impacting our independence have arisen during the year. 

Statement of Responsibilities 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by PSAA explains the 

respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body and this report is prepared on the 

basis of, and our audit work is carried out in accordance with, that statement.  

The matters raised in this report are only those that came to our attention during our audit and 

are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all weaknesses that exist or of all 

improvements that might be made.  You should assess recommendations for improvements for 

their full implications before they are implemented.  In particular, we would emphasise that we 

are not responsible for the adequacy and appropriateness of the national data and methodology 

supporting our value for money conclusion as they are derived solely from the National Audit 

Office. 

This report has been prepared for the Members, as a body, and we therefore accept 

responsibility to you alone for its contents.  We accept no duty, responsibility or liability to any 

other party. 

An audit does not provide assurance on the maintenance and integrity of the website, including 

controls used to achieve this, and in particular on whether any changes may have occurred to 

the Annual Audit Letter since first published.  These matters are the responsibility of the 

Authority but no control procedures can provide absolute assurance in this area.  

 

Page 61



Blackpool Council Annual Audit Letter 2018/19 

14   

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

This document is confidential and it is not to be copied or made available to any 

other party. Deloitte LLP does not accept any liability for use of or reliance on the 

contents of this document by any person save by the intended recipient(s) to the 

extent agreed in a Deloitte LLP engagement contract.  

 

If this document contains details of an arrangement that could result in a tax or 

National Insurance saving, no such conditions of confidentiality apply to the details 

of that arrangement (for example, for the purpose of discussion with tax 

authorities). 

 

Deloitte LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with 

registered number OC303675 and its registered office at 1 New Street Square, 

London, EC4A 3HQ, United Kingdom. 

 

Deloitte LLP is the United Kingdom affiliate of Deloitte NSE LLP, a member firm of 

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee 

(“DTTL”). DTTL and each of its member firms are legally separate and independent 

entities. DTTL and Deloitte NSE LLP do not provide services to clients. Please see 

www.deloitte.com/about to learn more about our global network of member firms. 

 

© 2020 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved. 

 

Page 62


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 27 NOVEMBER 2019
	Minutes

	3 COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AUDIT FOLLOW-UP
	Appendix 3(a) - Community Engagement Recommendations

	4 STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER - FAILURE TO KEEP PEOPLE SAFE
	Appendix 4(a) - SRR Failure To Keep People Safe

	5 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2018/2019 HALF-YEAR REVIEW
	Appendix 5(a) - AGS

	6 ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2018/2019
	Item 6 - Annual Audit Letter




